THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF THE MAYOR AND ALDERPERSONS
OF THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, WILSON COUNTY, TN

JANUARY 31, 2024

The Board of Mayor and Alderpersons of the City of Watertown, Wilson County, TN met in
regular session on January 31, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. at the Watertown Community Center.

Alderpersons Present: April Pearson, Caleb Barrett, Kyle Stacey, Laura Cromer, Steve Casey,
Howell Roberts and Mayor Mike Jennings.

Mayor Jennings called the meeting to order with welcoming everyone and led with prayer.

Motion made by Howell Roberts and proper second by Caleb Barrett to approve the
December 19, 2023 minutes. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC BUSINESS AND COMMENTS
None

FIRE REPORT

Blake Haun presented the fire report with a total of 42 calls for the month of December, 14
calls in the City and 28 calls within the County. The total yearly calls were 549 with 643 calls
the prior year.

Joe Decker has listed the surplus property on Gov Deals.

Blake stated the training class has finished which added three more to their roster, the
roster normally stays at 20 members for the department.

Howell Roberts asked if the Suburban that the Fire Department uses for equipment to be
taken to calls is safe and dependable. Blake stated that the vehicle has had repairs lately
and is safe and operational.

SEWER REPORT

Steve Jones with Water Management Services was present to discuss the bids that were
opened on January 30" for the Sewer Rehab Project (WMS #19141). There were 4 bids
submitted with Conrad Construction being the lowest bidder in the amount of
$5,419,580.00. The bid consists of a base bid for $4,041,910.00 and additive alternate bid
for $1,377,670.00. The City has an option to award the project based on either the Base Bid
in the amount of $4,041,910.00 or the Total Bid in the amount of $5,419,580.00.

The base bid includes moving the sewer from the creek which is about 2700 feet of brand
new sewer line and then rehab 6500 feet of sewer in the city. The additive alternate adds
another 6,000 feet of sewer line that would be rehabbed to prevent I & I from going into the
sewer system. To add the alternate bid is an additional $1,377,670.00.

Steve Jones has reviewed some engineering options, one of the items in the bid was for the
areas where the mainline sewer was being lined .The bid is to set new cleanouts for every
customer that is on those lines and to line the sewer service. The City owns the sewer
service from the main sewer line to the right of way, there are 250 services between the
base and additive alternate bid. One bidder submitted almost $2,000,000.00 for this work
to be done. Steve doesn't believe it's worth that much money to line 250 services, if that
was eliminated the total bid for all the remaining work would be $3,429,380.00.



Steve Jones recommends to award the rehab project to Conrad Construction-for the total
bid amount of $5,419,580.00 and authorize a change order to remove the lining of the
service lines which would reduce the original contract amount.

Steve Jones stated the contract gives the City the ability to eliminate any of the work at any
time without any penalty.

Kyle Stacey asked if the sewer system all are the same age? Steve Jones stated the sewer
system was basically built at the same time frame, when the flow studies were done the
entire system was looked at such as the locations, significant issues, along with TV
inspections all this was provided as part of the Corrective Action Plan. This project will be
fulfilling the steps to help reduce the amount of flow going into the treatment plant and
eliminating the issues in the sewer system that are caused by rainwater entering the
system.

Kyle Stacey asked if the existing pipes are cast iron? Steve Jones stated the pipes are
mostly pvc which is a clay pipe.

Kyle Stacey asked will there be any issues with hooking back to the lines? Steve Jones
stated the pipes that will be rehabilitated after the process is completed will be like a
fiberglass pipe that is seamless. When the pipe is terminated at the manholes the manholes
will have an epoxy coat which will cause no leaks at the manholes.

Mayor Jennings asked will the sewer have to cross the creek at any point to reach the
pumping station? Steve Jones stated sewer will cross the creek 3 different times which
includes coming out of the pumping station, 1400 feet downstream and the easement that
was granted on the other side of the bridge. There will be no more manholes in the creek.

Steve Casey asked if all the 8 and 15 inch main sewer lines that are shown in the plans will
be new or rehabbed? Steve Jones stated that 12,000 feet of sewer line will be rehabbed
which is approximately 2.5 miles of the sewer system.

Steve Casey asked about the life span of the new and rehabbed lines? Steve Jones stated
the lines are equivalent to installing brand new pipes, which would be a minimum of a 40
year life span.

Mayor Jennings asked how much paving would be done with this project? Steve Jones
stated there is approximately 900-1000 feet of new sewer that needs to be moved from the
creek to the street (Commerce Avenue). It is in the contract to fix the street back that
consists of a complete overlay and restriping.

Mayor Jennings stated Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund and USDA are some funding options.
Tennessee Municipal would be a 15-20 year bond and USDA makes rural loans to help with
infrastructure with lower interest rates that can extend up to 40 years. Mayor Jennings
would like to have funding in place within 30-60 days. Mayor Jennings will ask Tennessee
Municipal for 15-20-25-30 year loan options.

Steve Jones stated the contract bids are good for 90 days from January 30t".
The completion date for this contract would be one year to complete, the agreed order
completion date is 2026.



Motion made by Steve Casey and proper second by Kyle Stacey to approve and award the
total contract bid to Conrad Construction in the amount of $5,419,580.00. The City can
request an initial change order to eliminate the lining of the service lines for every
connection along the 8 or 15 inch mains that exist which will bring the cost down to
$3,429,380.00. This is contingent to obtaining the funds from Tennessee Municipal Bond
Funding or USDA. Motion carried unanimously.

POLICE REPORT
Assistant Mike Henderlight asked if anyone had any questions on the police report.

Mike Henderlight stated they have been working on the LPR camera system for over a year
and it has been installed and is working great.

Howell Roberts asked if the cameras have to have the blue lights on? Mike Henderlight
stated with the grant they had two options, either the blue lights stay solid or blink at all
times. The blue lights are a requirement. On most grants that are funded by Federal money
they regulate how the money is spent with requirements and restrictions. The lights serve
the purpose of letting people know they are there, they have not been installed to write any
traffic violations such as speeding or running stop signs. The cameras are LPR LPC that read
license plates, and the police department already has two success stories by having the
cameras.

Mike Henderlight stated the cameras were installed to help and make the City better. Mayor
Jennings stated with one being located on the square this will give the merchants additional
protection and the grant money was well spent.

SEWER REPORT
Dale Smith stated the contractors will be here in March to start the pump station rehab and
the break with a service line connection in the creek has been repaired.

Jeff Tunks stated the baseball sign ups have started and closing ceremony for basketball will
be February 24, awards will be passed out at 2:00 with coach’s game afterwards.

Jeff stated he has added a site on purpleplayers.com for volunteers to sign up to help with
batting cages, tarp being put down on fields, work days at the park.

Jeff asked if a top sealant could be put on the basketball courts and to purchase a pickle ball
net to see if there's any interest. Also some dirt needs to be put at the Middle School
football field where the 6 inch trench is so the field can be used as a practice field for
baseball.

OLD BUSINESS
Mayor Jennings stated the grant application with Greater Nashville Regional results should
be Mid-February. The grant is for $210,000.00 with the City’s matching fund of $10,000.00

Mayor Jennings stated Greater Nashville Regional had contacted him to discuss sidewalks,
he will find out more information and bring back to the Council.

Mayor Jennings stated he had attended a meeting with Sam Hatcher, Steve Smartt and with
the Commissioner of Transportation, everyone is still looking for options to fund the
Turntable.



Mayor Jennings stated we have received the audit ending June 30, 2023 and everything
looks good. Mr. Poole has sent a new contract for 23-24 audit to be approved for the same
amount of $5900.00.

Motion made by Laura Cromer and proper second by Howell Roberts to rehire Mr. John Poole
to not exceed $6500.00. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Jennings stated early voting will be starting February 14t and will need to set
equipment up on the 13" after city court. They will be here thru February 27t and Election
Day will be March 5%,

Motion made by Kyle Stacey and proper second by Caleb Barrett to approve the dates for
the Election Commission to use the community center room for early voting. Motion carried
unanimously.

Mayor Jennings stated there was an issue with a tractor trailer pulling out from Linwood
Road that turned right and caused problems. Linwood Road is in the County and Industrial
Park is within the city so we would need to coordinate any solutions and decisions.

Steve Casey suggested installing a sign that states no right turns for the trucks that are
coming from the Industrial Park to Linwood Road.

Mayor Jennings stated next meeting will be February 20 at 6:00 P.M. to be held in the
conference room.

Mayor Jennings stated the City of Watertown received an award from the Lebanon Wilson
County Chamber of Commerce celebrating their 100t Year Anniversary, they recognized the
three cities with an award.

COUNCIL COMMENTS
April Pearson-No Comments

Caleb Barrett- No Comments
Kyle Stacey-No Comments
Laura Cromer-No Comments
Steve Casey-No Comments
Howell Roberts-No Comments

Steve Casey announced there will be a men’s breakfast at First Baptist Church on February
24t at 8:00, everyone is invited to attend.

Emily Nix wanted to thank the city employees for fixing the potholes.

Motion made by Steve Casey and proper second by Caleb Barrett to adjourn meeting.

Q‘;LDH& r\\bkdu&m.

April La}nber\s“oﬂ/, City Recorder




